Minutes of a meeting of Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance held on Wednesday, 15th January, 2020 from 7.00 - 8.58 pm

Present: J Knight (Chair)

M Pulfer (Vice-Chair)

G Allen P Coote Andrew Lea
A Bennett R Cromie C Trumble
P Budgen A Eves R Whittaker

R Cartwright R Jackson

Absent: Councillors H Brunsdon and L Stockwell

Also Present: Councillors

1 TO NOTE SUBSTITUTES IN ACCORDANCE WITH COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 4 - SUBSTITUTES AT MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES ETC.

None.

2 TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.

Apologies were received from Councillor Stockwell.

3 TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

In relation to item 6 on the agenda, Councillor Lea declared that he is a West Sussex County Councillor.

4 TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2019.

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2019 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

5 TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE CHAIRMAN AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT BUSINESS.

None.

6 DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN AND BUDGET FOR 2020/21.

The Leader was invited to provide an overview of the budget. He advised the Committee Members that the meeting provided an opportunity to scrutinise the Corporate Plan and Budget for 2020/21. He noted that following the scrutiny of the draft Service Plans and Budget, the Cabinet would consider them and then Council

to would consider them at its meeting in early March. He commented on changes to the funding regime for local government.

The Chief Executive explained to the Committee how papers could be used to enable the Scrutiny Committee to consider all aspects of the draft budget and service plands 2020/1.

Members discussed Government Funding, the Full Fibre network for Burgess Hill, and staffing levels. The Chief Executive advised that when the report was written the provisional local government settlement was not known. However, since the General Election it had been announced and the draft budget did not require amendments in the light of it. The Head of Corporate resources noted that it was predicted that no revenue support would be received, which was correct but the system may change for 2021/22. The Head of Digital and Customer Service provided details on the Council's employees.

Information was sought on insurance, rental income, sale of assets, the future predicted deficit and The Orchards. The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that due to collective procurement with other local authorities insurance costs had reduced. He advised that changes in rents were reported on an individual bases as no regular increments were built in. The Chief Executive commented that the budget predicted a deficit in year 2; however some factors may change and noted that the Fair Funding review would be material. Some Councils like Mid Sussex may not fair very well and money may be diverted to other local authorities with children and adult responsibilities. She noted that receipts from the sale of assets were not accounted for until they were received. The Leader confirmed that a study was underway to assess options to improve The Orchards to generate more income and reflect the changing needs of Mid Sussex residents. He noted the 8% increase in footfall at The Orchards in the last quarter.

Members discussed the long term investment strategy in playgrounds, the Full Fibre network and areas of Mid Sussex currently benefiting from projects. The Assistant Chief Executive noted that 6 key parks had been identified for investment and that Council has commissioned a study to develop a 5 to 10 year strategy, for investment in the future. She confirmed some improvements had already been completed. The Chief Executive advised that the scrutiny committees will receive reports on the priority projects progress and noted that most were long term projects. The Head of Digital and Customer Service confirmed the extensive works required on ROI and regulated matters by Government funded projects. The Leader advised that the current development in Burgess Hill is supported by central government and emphasised that there is no prioritisation of investments in settlements in the District, as they all have different needs.

The provision of Gypsy and Travellers (G&T) and the recent problems with Electric Charging Points were discussed. The Assistant Chief Executive advised that the Council is required to meet the housing needs of all sectors of the community. The District Plan provides a policy framework.

The Chief Executive advised that section two highlighted the main changes in the draft budget for 2020/1 compared to the current year.

Members discussed staffing, job evaluation and gender pay gaps. The Chief Executive advised that resourcing staff is always a challenge with the highly competitive jobs market and the ambitious programme of projects. She noted that six teams are being restructured and invested in to ensure they have the right roles in

place to deliver projects. The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that job evaluation is a recurring cost and inflation of 2% on pay was a standard assumption used by other West Sussex authorities. The Head of Digital and Customer Service confirmed that the Annual Report on Equalities was being prepared.

West Sussex housing related support services, waste services and the audit were discussed. The Chief Executive outlined the impact of savings made by WSCC on recycling credits and supported housing, which had the impact of increasing this Council's costs directly. She advised that the Waste Collection Service is changing with a pilot food waste service starting shortly. The Head of Corporate Resources outlined the impact of changing requirements on the Council's external auditors.

Members discussed mitigation for climate change and tree planting schemes. The Leader highlighted the sustainability action plan. He noted the high maintenance costs of new trees and confirmed that any tree planting must be sustainable and compatible with the Council's landscape assessment. The Committee were advised that this district is a heavily wooded area, with 50,000 trees in the Council's ownership.

The Assistant Chief Executive introduced section three, a summary of the highlights of the past year and the anticipated focus for the coming year. She noted the continued demand for affordable housing and the provision of temporary accommodation. She noted that the Council had not owned any housing since 1990 until 2019.

The supply of affordable housing, cashless parking and sports provision for the Northern Arc development were discussed. The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that the supply of affordable housing is linked to the housing market, and the Council can predict the supply as long as private housing is delivered by the market. Members were advised that cash and cashless parking payments were accepted in all Council car parks. The sports provision for the Northern Arc is a longer term priority project and the Council will work with consultants and Sports England.

The Head of Corporate Resources highlighted the new Council Tax Support Scheme, the new cloud based financial management system which was working well, and the project to install more vehicle charging points across the District. He advised that the Council should modernise to make more Council Services available online with smartphones.

The Head of Digital and Customer Service noted the continued efficiency savings and benefits of new software systems, new apprenticeship roles within the Council for those starting work and to reskill existing staff. The Solicitor highlighted the work of the Legal Team with planning applications and the work of the Democratic Services Team with the upcoming Referendum and Election in 2020. He noted that the digitisation of Land Charges was almost complete, and future increased work by Environmental Health in the private sector housing enforcement.

The Members considered each service commentary and summary budget tables in section 3 of the report.

Members asked a number of questions and they were answered by officers. The Solicitor confirmed that HMOs are now any property of at least 5 occupants, previously they were properties with a minimum of 3 storeys and 5 occupants. The Assistant Chief Executive confirmed the current situation with CIL and reminded

Members that the Council had commissioned an external assessment of recent changes to CIL. The report would advise the Council how to proceed.

In section four discussions were held on disabled grants, planned borrowing and the funding of projects from reserves.

Members commented on the use of consultants, the Burgess Hill Growth Project and Section 106 funding. The Chief Executive noted that the Council utilises consultants when particular expertise is required and is not available within the council structure or if extra capacity is required to deliver projects quickly, she added that the use of consultants is kept under review. The Committee were advised that progress of the Burgess Hill Growth project would be reported in a number of ways, reports to scrutiny committees, complimented by workshops.

The Chairman thanked the Members for the robust discussion and officers for their work.

The Chairman took Members to the recommendations contained in the report, which were agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

The Committee:

Considered the proposals for 2020/21 set out in the appended report and agreed any comments or recommendations that it wishes to make to Cabinet on:

- (a) The financial outlook facing the Council;
- (b) The proposed increase in Council Tax;
- (c) The proposed placements in the Specific Reserves;
- (d) The proposed Capital Programme; and
- (e) The service commentaries and supporting summary budget tables for each business unit.

7 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR LEADER, FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20.

Tom Clark, Solicitor to the Council introduced the report, highlighting the two items which will appear on the next agenda. He noted that the next meeting would be held on 7 April 2020.

The Head of Corporate Resources noted that capital projects are monitored through the budget management report and this report is received by this committee biannually.

The Chairman took Members to the recommendation which was agreed unanimously.

RESOLVED

The Committee:

(i) Agreed the Committee's Work Programme as set out at paragraph 5 of the report, noting the date of the next meeting will be 7 April 2020.

8	QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10, DUE NOTICE OF WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.
	None.
	The meeting finished at 8.58 pm
	Chairman